# YANKTON COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

October 5, 2021

The regular meeting of the Yankton County Commission was called to order by Chair Cheri Loest at 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, October 5, 2021.

Roll call was taken with the following Commissioners present: Wanda Howey-Fox, Don Kettering, Dan Klimisch, Joseph Healy, and Cheri Loest.

There were no conflicts of interest reported by Commissioners.

**Action 21460C**: A motion was made by Kettering and seconded by Fox to approve the meeting agenda. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0.

There were no public comments.

Chair Loest closed public comment.

**Action 21461C**: A motion was made by Healy and seconded by Fox to approve the September 21, 2021, meeting minutes. Voting aye: Kettering, Klimisch, Fox and Healy. Loest abstained. Motion carried, 4-0.

**Action 21462C**: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Healy to approve the following claims; Non-Departmental: York Fire Department (Refund) \$50.00; Commissioners: Best Western Ramkota Hotel (Travel) \$606.00, Yankton County Observer (Publishing's) \$255.86; Elections: Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) \$19.90, Verizon (Rentals) \$280.07; Court: Juror Fees \$512.16, Certified Languages (Professional Services) \$95.70, Alvine Weidenaar LLP (Professional Services) \$1,191.40, Fox & Youngberg PC (Professional Services) \$15,000.00, Fox & Youngberg PC (Professional Services) \$1,732.50, Horn Law Offices LLC (Professional Services) \$7,260.85, Clovia Dee (Professional Services) \$289.00, Kennedy Pier Loftus & Reynolds (Professional Services) \$5,189.10, LaCroix Law Office (Neglected) \$158.40; Auditor: Best Western Ramkota Hotel (Travel) \$202.00, Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) \$85.95; Treasurer: Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) \$351.02; States Attorney: Executive MGMT. Plan (Supplies) \$33.50, Staples Credit Plan (Supplies) \$543.61; Government Building: Kopetsky's Ace Hardware (Maintenance) \$63.95, Bomgaars (Maintenance) \$25.98, City of Yankton (Utilities) \$2,749.60, NAPA Auto Parts of Yankton (Maintenance) \$189.99, Midwestern Mechanical Inc. (Maintenance) \$120.00, Johnson Controls (Maintenance) \$278.09, Menards (Maintenance) \$28.43, Menards (Supplies) \$139.09, Northwestern Energy (Utilities) \$3,055.83, Olson's Pest Technicians (Maintenance) \$82.00; Director of Equalization: Professional Development (Travel) \$1,645.00, Investigative Services (Professional Services) \$149.50, Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) \$49.15, Andrea Wright (Travel) \$301.22, Kasi Foss (Travel) \$200.00; Register of Deeds: Executive MGMT. Finance (Supplies) \$33.50, Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) \$48.42, One Office Solution (Supplies) \$167.78; VA: Embroidery & Screen Works (Supplies) \$219.65, Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) \$5.56, Verizon (Rentals) \$40.01, One Office Solution (Supplies) \$25.19; Safety Center Building: City of Yankton (Utilities) \$1,082.16, Cole Papers Inc. (Supplies) \$386.35, Midwestern Mechanical Inc. (Maintenance) \$275.00, Justice Fire & Safety (Maintenance) \$256.00, Johnson Controls (Maintenance) \$215.27, Menards (Supplies)

\$57.54, Northwestern Energy (Utilities) \$10,061.57; Sheriff: Greg Jensen (Travel) \$139.00, First Dakota National Bank (Supplies) \$223.42, Embroidery & Screen works (Uniforms) \$552.00, Midcontinent Communications (Utilities) \$125.00, Microsoft (Maintenance Contracts) \$912.00, Northtown Automotive (Maintenance Contracts) \$91.26, Qualified Presort Services (Maintenance Contracts) \$135.49, Streicher's Inc. (Law Enforcement Equip) \$2,629.06, Tire Muffler Alignment (Maintenance) \$148.42; County Jail: Avera Sacred Heart Hospital (Professional Services) \$363.58, AMG Radiology Yankton (Professional Services) \$35.74, Avera Medical Group (Professional Services) \$87.62, Bob Barker Company (Supplies) \$1,179.64, Scott Family Dentistry (Professional Services) \$196.00, Charm-Tex (Supplies) \$3,265.76, Jerry Sorbel (Professional Services) \$420.00, AMG Hospitalists (Professional Services) \$301.77, Avera Medical Group Family (Professional Services) \$32.51, Diamond Drugs (Professional Services) \$244.49, EZ Duz it Laundry (Uniforms) \$8.00, EZ Duz it Laundry (Supplies) \$116.00, Interstate All Battery (Supplies) \$215.25, Jacks Uniforms & Equipment (Uniforms) \$927.99, JCL Solutions (Supplies) \$1,298.57, Davis Distributors Inc. (Supplies) \$1,099.45, Kaiser Appliance & Refrigeration (Maintenance) \$365.50, Microsoft (Security Maintenance) \$912.00, Midwest Card & ID Solutions (Supplies) \$100.63, Olson's Pest Tech (Maintenance) \$133.00, Tire Muffler Alignment (Auto Expense) \$19.72, One Office Solution (Supplies) \$163.24, Yankton Rexall Drug (Professional Services) \$819.55, Yankton Medical Clinic (Professional Services) \$379.38; Care of Poor: Qualified Presort Services LLC (Supplies) \$98.11, Lisa Ven Osdel (Travel) \$313.74; Public Health Nurse: Oualified Presort Services (Supplies) \$24.77; Ambulance: Avera Health (Supplies) \$60.00, Avera Sacred Heart Hospital (Supplies) \$130.55, Sacred Heart Health Services (Professional Services) \$1,500.00, AT & T (Utilities) \$36.05, City of Yankton (Utilities) \$558.08, Credit Collections Services (Professional Services) \$873.44, Cintas (Supplies) \$91.40, Matheson Tri-Gas Inc. (Supplies) \$236.42, Menards (Supplies) \$162.98, Verizon (Utilities) \$304.07; Mental Illness Board: Lewis & Clark Behavioral (Hearings) \$552.00, Lucille M Lewno (Hearings) \$120.00, Minnehaha County Auditor (Hearings) \$104.50; County Extension: City of Yankton (Utilities) \$73.38; Planning & Zoning: Leaf (Rentals) \$104.86, Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) \$53.35, Verizon (Utilities) \$41.99; Road & Bridge: Boller Printing Co (Supplies) \$26.63, Presto-X (Maintenance) \$118.00, City of Yankton (Utilities) \$108.82, Concrete Materials (Asphalt Roads) \$155,354.16, Direct TV (Utilities) \$88.99, Sheldon Engen (Maintenance) \$1,350.00, Growmark FS (Fuel) \$19,838.37, Francotyp-Postalia Inc. (Supplies) \$68.85, Fastenal Industrial (Maintenance) \$278.14, Graham Tire Yankton (Maintenance) \$469.00, I State Truck Center (Maintenance) \$68.54, Diamond Vogel Paint (Asphalt Road) \$11,529.35, Jebro Inc. (Annual Projects) \$386,334.40, Longs Propane Inc. (Fuel) \$27.30, Northwestern Energy (Utilities) \$749.68, RDO Equipment Co (Maintenance) \$425.15, Riverside Hydraulics (Maintenance) \$117.92, Verizon (Utilities) \$86.84; Emergency 911 Fund: Vast Business (Utilities) \$1,232.22, City of Yankton (Professional Services) \$22,776.58, CenturyLink (Utilities) \$158.38; Emergency Management: Kopetsky's Ace Hardware (Supplies) \$263.42, Kopetsky's Ace Hardware (LEPC Fund) \$47.87, Electair Inc. (Maintenance) \$508.41, Midwest Card & ID Solutions (Supplies) \$395.02, MidAmerican Energy (Utilities) \$8.00, Two Way Solutions Inc. (Supplies) \$64.98, Verizon (Utilities) \$816.84, One Office Solution (Supplies) \$39.99, One Office Solution (Maintenance) \$10.78; Government Buildings: Bomgaars (Govt Buildings) \$91.59, Menards (Govt Buildings) \$58.86; 24/7 Program: Pharmchem (Supplies) \$2,341.10, One Office Solution (Minor Equipment) \$4,891.85; Non-Departmental: SCRAM (Refund) \$80.00, Cam Daily Fee (Refund) \$16.00; M & PR Fund: One Office Solution (Supplies) \$713.76; General Fund \$78,889.58, Road & Bridge, \$577,040.14, Emergency Management, \$2,155.31. All present voted ave; motion carried, 5-0.

Action 21463C: A motion was made by Healy and seconded by Klimisch to approve the

SEPTEMBER, 2021 Gross Payroll: Commissioners: \$5,820.58; Court: \$0.00; Election: \$0.00; Auditor: \$15,990.07; Treasurer: \$18,484.86; States Attorney: \$38,180.08; Government Buildings: \$7,175.84; Director of Equalization: \$25,900.66; Register of Deeds: \$12,655.14; Veterans Service: \$3,530.93; Courthouse & Safety Center: \$6,465.17; Sheriff: \$65,195.27; County Jail: \$81,585.95; Coroner: \$400.00; Juvenile: \$234.72; Nurse: \$2,562.36; Ambulance: \$51,227.46; WIC: \$1,002.24; Extension: \$7,320.81; Soil Conservation: \$2,597.38; Weed: \$3,427.20; Planning & Zoning: \$10,394.20; Road & Bridge: \$71,424.74; E911: \$59.96; OEM: \$10,542.54; 24-7 Program: \$1,264.45. First Dakota National Bank \$32,931.93 (Withholding), First Dakota National Bank \$53,108.38 (FICA) First Dakota National Bank \$12,420.50 (Medicare), South Dakota Retirement System \$32,929.54 (Other Employees), South Dakota Retirement System \$19,696.42 (Sheriff), South Dakota Retirement System (Spouse Opt) \$171.06, South Dakota Retirement System (Supplemental) \$8,106.66, American Family Life Assurance Company (AFLAC) \$5,663.55, Legalshield \$25.90, Office of Child Support \$578.00, Nationwide Retirement Solutions \$69.44, Accounts Management \$50.00, Boston Mutual Life Insurance \$341.43, Colonial Life & Accident \$1,288.74, Avera Health Plans \$59,986.21, Optilegra \$342.27, United Way of Greater Yankton 10.00, Delta Dental \$1,566.22, VSP Vision \$292.69, Harmelink & Fox Law Office \$293.24, HealthEquity \$3,341.58. Gross Payroll \$443,490.61, Net Payroll \$325,546.59. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0.

**Action 21464A**: A motion was made by Kettering and seconded by Fox to approve the the Annual budget for 2022 with the following changes: General Fund Tax amount to \$6,702,231.00 and Historical Tax amount to \$102,500. All present voted aye; motion carried.

# ANNAL BUDGET FOR YANKTON COUNTY, SD For the Year January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

### Tax Levy in

COUNTY TAX LEVIES	Dollars	\$'s/1,000
WITHIN LIMITED LEVY:		
* General County Purposes (10-12-9)	6,702,231.00	3.080
Library		
LIMITED LEVY (10-12-21) - SUB TOTAL		
OUTSIDE LIMITED LEVY:	6,702,231.00	3.080
County Snow Removal Fund (34-5-2)		
County Road and Bridge (10-12-13)		
Courthouse, Jail, etc., Bldg. (7-25-1)	60,000.00	0.028
Bond Interest Sinking (7-24-18)		

### RESOLUTION

# ADOPTION OF ANNUAL BUDGET FOR YANKTON County, South Dakota

Whereas, (7-21-5 thru 13), SDCL provides that the Board of County Commissioners shall each year prepare a Provisional Budget of all contemplated expenditures and revenues of the County and all its institutions and agencies for such fiscal year and, Whereas, the Board of County Commissioners did prepare a Provisional Budget and cause same to be published by law, and

Whereas, due and legal notice has been given to the meeting of the Board of County Commissioners for the consideration of such Provisional Budget and all changes, elimination's and additions have been made thereto.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That such provisional budget

as amended and all its purposes, schedules, appropriations, amounts, estimates and all matters therein set forth, SHALL BE APPROVED AND ADOPTED AS THE ANNUAL BUDGET OF THE

		County, So
		calendar y
		2022 and t
-		Board of C County, So
		The Annua
		during nor
		Yankton, C
		taxes are l
		January 1, 2022.
		BOARD O
60,000.00	0.028	OF
		Yankton C
6,762,231.00	3.108	Cheri Loes
364,667.00	0.643	Joseph He
50,000.00	0.088	
		Dan Klimis
		Wanda Ho Fox
		 Don Ketter
		ATTEST
7,176,898.00	3.839	-
	364,667.00 50,000.00	6,762,231.00       3.108         364,667.00       0.643         50,000.00       0.088         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       -         -       <

APPROPRIATION AND EXPENDITURES FOR Yankton County, South Dakota and all its institutions and agencies for calendar year beginning January 1, 2022 and ending December 31, 2022 and the same is hereby approved and adopted by the Board of County Commissioners, Yankton County, South Dakota, this 5th day of October, 2022. The Annual Budget so adopted is available for public inspection during normal business hours at the office of the county auditor Yankton, County, South Dakota. The accompanying taxes are levied by Yankton County for the year January 1, 2022 through December 31,

#### BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Yankton County, South Dakota

Cheri Loest	Chair
Joseph Healy	Commissioner
Dan Klimisch	Commissioner
Wanda Howey- Fox	Commissioner
Don Kettering	Commissioner
ATTEST Karen Fa	aerber Deputy County Auditor

\* These Amounts include the 25% to be distributed to cities.

As of October 5, 2021 these levies are not approved by the Department of Revenue

**Action 21465HWY**: A motion was made by Healy and seconded by Klimisch to adjust the Highway Department budget due to unanticipated revenue in the amount of \$13,112.76. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0.

**Action 21466S**: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Kettering to adjust the Sheriff's Office budget due to unanticipated revenue in the amount of \$2,986.00. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0.

A motion was made by Klimisch to approve granting Yankton County employees the day off for Native American Day on October 11, 2021. Motion died for lack of a second.

Emergency Management Director Paul Scherschligt appeared before the board for approval

of the Local Emergency Management Performance Grant Agreement and the Yankton County Hazard Mitigation Program Grant.

**Action 214670EM**: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Healy to approve the Local Emergency Management Performance Grant Agreement. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0.

**Action 214680EM**: A motion was made by Kettering and seconded by Healy to approve the Yankton County Hazard Mitigation Plan Resolution. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0.

**Action 21469C**: A motion was made by Healy and seconded by Kettering to approve the Grant award for Phase 1 Approval-FEMA DR-4440-SD, HMGP Project 35R Yankton County Stone Church Road Elevation. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0.

Director of Equalization Jessica Atkinson appeared before the board to request agreement between Matt Archer and Yankton County to provide temporary administrative assistance to the Yankton County Department of Equalization.

**Action 21470DOE**: A motion was made by Healy and seconded by Kettering to approve agreement between Yankton County and Matt Archer for temporary services at \$50 per hour not to exceed \$5,000. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0.

Ned Horsted made comment on the medical cannabis ordinance.

**Action 21471C**: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Healy to approve the following Medical Cannabis Licensing Ordinance #21-ZN-07. Roll call vote was taken with Kettering, Klimisch, Fox, Healy, and Loest voting aye; motion carried, 5-0.

# ORDINANCE # 21-ZN-07

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING MEDICAL CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS IN YANKTON COUNTY.

**WHEREAS, the State of South Dakota permits the sale and consumption of medical cannabis pursuant to South Dakota Codified Law** (SDCL) Chapter 34-20G and,

**WHEREAS**, pursuant to SDCL 34-20G-55, county government may require a local registration, license, or permit for a medical cannabis establishment to operate within that County, and

**WHEREAS**, pursuant to SDCL 34-20G-58, county government may enact ordinances or regulations governing the time, place, manner, and number of licensees operating within its jurisdiction; and

**WHEREAS**, also pursuant to SDCL 34-20G-58, county government may establish civil penalties for violation of an ordinance governing the time, place, and manner of medical cannabis establishments that operate locally, and

**WHEREAS**, under the provisions of SDCL 34-20G-60, county government may require a medical cannabis establishment to obtain a county license, permit, or registration prior to operating, and may charge a reasonable fee for that license, permit, or registration, and

**WHEREAS**, the County believes that regulation of medical cannabis is necessary for the health and safety of this community SDCL 7-18A-8; then and therefore,

**WHEREAS**, the State of South Dakota permits the sale and consumption of cannabis pursuant to South Dakota Codified Law, medical cannabis establishments licensed under this ordinance may sell cannabis for adult use so long as they comply with the provisions of South Dakota Codified Law and the South Dakota Department of Health.

# BE IT ORDAINED BY THE YANKTON COUNTY COMMISSION AS FOLLOWS:

## Section 1. Intent

The Board of Commissioners of Yankton County hereby enacts the following licensing ordinances to ensure that cannabis establishments within the jurisdiction of Yankton County operate in a manner that complies with state laws and regulations, protects the health, safety, and welfare of the general public, prevents potential conflicts and issues arising from ownership and employees, recognizes particular safety and security considerations, and minimizes the risk of unauthorized use or access of cannabis by the general public.

# Section 2. Definitions

Unless an alternative definition is explicitly stated in this section, this chapter utilizes the definitions for cannabis-related terms which are defined by SDCL 34-20G-1.

- 1. "Allowable amount of cannabis" means:
  - a. Three ounces of cannabis or less;
  - b. A quantity of cannabis products with an equivalent cannabis weight as established by rules promulgated by the department under § 34-20G-72;
  - c. If the cardholder has a registry identification card allowing cultivation, three cannabis plants minimum or as prescribed by physician; and
  - d. If the cardholder has a registry identification card allowing cultivation, the amount of cannabis and cannabis products that were produced from the cardholder's allowable plants, if the cannabis and cannabis products are possessed at the same property where the plants were cultivated;
- 2. "Bona fide practitioner-patient relationship" means:
  - a. A practitioner and patient have a treatment or consulting relationship, during course of which the practitioner has completed an assessment of the patient's medical history and current medical condition, including an appropriate in-person physical examination;
  - b. The practitioner has consulted with the patient with respect to the patient's debilitating medical condition; and
  - c. The practitioner is available to or offers to provide follow-up care and treatment to the patient, including patient examinations;
- 3. **"Cannabis products"** means any concentrated cannabis, cannabis extracts, and products that are infused with cannabis or an extract thereof, and are intended for use or consumption by humans. The term includes edible cannabis products, beverages, topical products, ointments, oils and tinctures;
- 4. **"Cannabis product manufacturing facility"** means an entity registered with the department pursuant to this chapter that acquires, possesses, manufactures, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis products to a medical cannabis dispensary;
- 5. "Cannabis testing facility" or "testing facility" means an independent entity registered with the department pursuant to this chapter to analyze the safety and potency of cannabis;
- 6. "Cardholder" means a qualifying patient or a designated caregiver who has been issued and possesses a valid registry identification card;
- 7. "Commissioners" means the Yankton County Board of County Commissioners;
- 8. **"Cultivation facility"** means an entity registered with the department pursuant to this chapter that acquires, possesses, cultivates, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis and related supplies to a medical cannabis establishment;
- 9. "Debilitating medical condition" means:
  - a. A chronic or debilitating disease or medical condition or its treatment that produces one or more of the following: cachexia or wasting syndrome; severe, debilitating pain; severe nausea; seizures; or sever and persistent muscle spasms, including those characteristic of multiple sclerosis; or

- b. Any other medical condition or its treatment added by the department, as provided for in SDCL 34-20G-26;
- 10. "Department" means the Department of Health;
- 11. "Designated caregiver" means a person who:
  - a. Is at least twenty-one (21) years of age;
  - b. Has agreed to assist with a qualifying patient's medical use of cannabis;
  - c. Has not been convicted of a disqualifying felony offense; and
  - d. Assists no more than five (5) qualifying patients with the medical use of cannabis, unless the designated caregivers' qualifying patients each reside in or are admitted to a health care facility or residential care facility where the designated caregiver is employed;
- 12. "**Disqualifying felony offense**" means a violent crime that was classified as a felony in the jurisdiction where the person was convicted;
- 13. "Edible cannabis products" means any product that:
  - a. Contains or is infused with cannabis or an extract thereof;
  - b. Is intended for human consumption by oral ingestion; and
  - c. Is presented in the form of foodstuffs, beverages, extracts, oils, tinctures, or other similar products;
- 14. "Enclosed, locked facility" means any closet, room, greenhouse, building, or other enclosed area that is equipped with locks or other security devices that permit access only by a cardholder or a person allowed to cultivate the plants. Two or more cardholders who reside in the same dwelling may share one enclosed, locked facility for cultivation;
- 15. "Medical cannabis" or "cannabis" means marijuana as defined in SDCL 22-42-1;
- 16. **"Medical cannabis dispensary"** or **"dispensary"** means an entity registered with the department pursuant to this chapter that acquires, possesses, stores, delivers, transfers, transports, sells, supplies, or dispenses cannabis, cannabis products, paraphernalia, or related supplies and educational materials to cardholders;
- 17. **"Medical cannabis establishment"** means a cultivation facility, a cannabis testing facility, a cannabis product manufacturing facility, or a dispensary;
- 18. **"Medical cannabis establishment agent"** means an owner, officer, board member, employee, or volunteer at a medical cannabis establishment;
- 19. **"Medical use"** includes the acquisition, administration, cultivation, manufacture, delivery, harvest, possession, preparation, transfer, transportation, or use of cannabis or paraphernalia relating to the administration of cannabis to treat or alleviate a registered qualifying patient's debilitating medical condition or symptom associated with the patient's debilitating medical condition. The term does not include:
  - a. The cultivation of cannabis by a nonresident cardholder;
  - b. The cultivation of cannabis by a cardholder who is not designated as being allowed to cultivate on the card holder's registry identification card; or
  - c. The extraction of resin from cannabis by solvent extraction unless the extraction is done by a cannabis product manufacturing facility;
- 20. "Nonresident cardholder" means a person who:
  - a. Has been diagnosed with a debilitating medical condition, or is the parent, guardian, conservator, or other person with authority to consent to the medical treatment of a person who has been diagnosed with a debilitating medical condition;
  - b. Is not a resident of this state or who has been a resident of this state for fewer than forty-five (45) days;
  - c. Was issued a currently valid registry identification card or its equivalent by another state, district, territory, commonwealth, insular possession of the United States, or country recognized by the United States that allows the person to use cannabis for medical purposes in the jurisdiction of issuance; and
  - d. Has submitted any documentation required by the department and has received confirmation of registration;

- 21. **"Place of worship"** means a structure where persons regularly assemble for worship, ceremonies, rituals, and education relating to a particular form of religious belief and which a reasonable person would conclude is a place of worship by reason of design, signs, or architectural or other features;
- 22. **"Practitioner"** means a physician who is licensed with authority to prescribe drugs to humans. In relation to a nonresident cardholder, the term means a person who is licensed with authority to prescribe drugs to humans in the state of the patient's residence;
- 23. **"Qualifying patient"** means a person who has been diagnosed by a practitioner as having a debilitation medical condition;
- 24. **"Registry identification card"** means a document issued by the department that identifies a person as a registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver, or documentation that is deemed a registry identification card pursuant to SDCL 34-20G-29 to SDCL 34-20G-42 inclusive; and

3

25. **"Written certification"** means a document dated and signed by a practitioner, stating that in the practitioner's professional opinion the patient is likely to receive therapeutic or palliative benefit from the medical use of cannabis to treat or alleviate the patient's debilitating medical condition or symptom associated with the debilitating medical condition. This document shall affirm that it is made in the course of a bona fide practitioner-patient relationship and shall specify the qualifying patient's debilitating medical condition.

# Section 3. Cannabis Establishment License Required

- A. Classes of License: Each type of the four cannabis establishments shall have its own class of licenses relating to the activities unique to each type of cannabis establishment. The four license classes are Cannabis Cultivation License, Cannabis Dispensary License, Cannabis Product Manufacturing License, and Cannabis Testing License.
- B. License Required: It shall be unlawful for any person or entity to create or operate a cannabis establishment in the County without first having obtained a license from the County and a registration certificate from the state for each cannabis establishment to be operated in connection with such business. Such license and certification shall be kept current at all times, and the failure to maintain a current license and certification shall constitute a violation of this section.
- C. Multiple Licenses: A person or entity who intends to conduct activities that would meet the definition of multiple cannabis establishments must, prior to operating such cannabis establishments, obtain a license for each class of cannabis establishment that pertain to the intended activities. A person or entity may hold more than one class of license except when otherwise prohibited by this chapter.
- D. License Location: Each license issued under this chapter shall authorize a single cannabis establishment to operate at a single location. Licenses of different classes may overlap except when otherwise prohibited by this chapter.
- E. License Duration: Each license issued is effective from January 1 through December 31 of the year applied for, regardless of the time of year such license is approved, excluding any license applied for in 2021. Each license expires at 11:59:59 P.M. on December 31 unless, prior to the expiration, the County Commission has approved, or conditionally approved, the renewal of such license for the following calendar year.

# Section 4. Number of Licenses

A. There shall be available as local licenses for medical cannabis establishments a total of 40 licenses.

B. The total local licenses established in Section 4A. shall be allocated as follows, with a maximum

number of local licenses limited within type of medical cannabis establishment as follows:

- 1. Cultivation Facility: 10 license(s)
- 2. Cannabis Testing Facility: 10 license(s)
- 3. Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility: 10 license(s)
- 4. Dispensary: 10 license(s)

C. The Commissioners shall consider all qualified applications in the order they were received, subject to any resolution establishing a different procedure. No local licenses may be issued after the available new local licenses have been awarded by the Commissioners.

D. Should any additional local licenses become available through revocation or otherwise, such license shall be made available to the first qualified applicant, subject to any resolution establishing a different procedure.

E. In the event the number of available licenses is reduced by future amendment of this Ordinance, no then existing licensee shall be prevented from continuing operation during the license term, from applying for renewal of such license for subsequent consecutive years, or from transferring such license, solely on the basis of such reduction. However, this exception shall not prevent a license from being suspended or revoked, nor shall it prevent a denial of an application for renewal or transfer, based upon grounds other than a change in the number of available licenses.

# **Section 5: License Fees**

A. There shall be a non-refundable application fee in the amount of \$5,000.

B. There shall be an **annual** non-refundable renewal fee for any license issued under this Ordinance in the amount of \$5,000.

# Section 6. Application Process

- A. It shall be unlawful for any person, business, or other organization to engage in the business of operating a medical cannabis establishment within the jurisdiction of Yankton County without having a local license issued by the County.
- B. It shall be necessary for any person, business, or other organization to obtain a local license under this Ordinance prior to submitting an application to the South Dakota Department of Health for a state registration certificate. SDCL34-20G-55
- C. The application shall be on forms provided by the Yankton County Auditor. All information requested on the form shall be provided before the completed application is submitted to the Commissioners. Applications will be available after the effective date of this Ordinance.
- D. Such application must include:
  - 1. The legal name and address of each principal officer(s), the owner(s), and/or board member(s) of the proposed cannabis establishment.
  - 2. The physical address and legal description for the proposed cannabis establishment.
  - 3. The legal business name of the proposed cannabis establishment.
  - 4. Previous experience operating a legal cannabis establishment, if any.
  - 5. Summary of operating procedures, including procedures to ensure accurate record keeping, adequate security measures, and compliance with all other requirements of this chapter.
  - Confirmation that none of the principal officers, owners and/or board members has served as a principal officer or board member for a cannabis establishment that has had governmental license or certification revoked in any jurisdiction.
  - 7. Confirmation that none of the principal officers, owners, or board members is under twenty-one years of age.
  - 8. Payment of the applicable license fee.
  - 9. Proof of financial responsibility in the amounts and manner established in this chapter below.
  - 10. A sworn statement that the application contains no false statements made or omissions of any material matter in any application for a license.
  - 11. The applicant's notarized signature.
  - 12. Preliminary site and building plans detailing how the proposed buildings and structures will conform to County zoning rules and rules set forth in State law for cannabis establishments.
  - 13. All cannabis establishments are required to be constructed in conformance with the 2021 Edition of the International Building Code and International Fire Code.
- E. Action by County Commission:
  - 1. Upon receipt of a completed application, application fee and license fee, the Auditor shall present the application to the Commissioners at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Commissioners. The Commissioners shall set the time and place for hearing on all applications that come before the Commissioners. The hearing shall be conducted within 45 days of presentation of the application to the Commissioners.
  - 2. The Auditor shall publish notice once in the official newspapers of the county, at least one week before the scheduled hearing. The notice shall be headed "Notice of Hearing Upon Applications for Medical Cannabis Establishment," shall state the time and place when and where such applications will be considered by the Commissioners, and shall state that any person interest in the approval or rejection of any such application may appear and be heard.

- 3. At the time and place so set, the Commissioners shall consider each application and any objection to the application before making its final decision on the application. The Commissioners may approve or disapprove the application depending on whether the Commissioners deem the applicant a suitable person to hold the license and whether the Commissioners consider the proposed location suitable.
- 4. A person or entity may obtain more than a single class of license and/or more than a single license within any class of license, unless otherwise prohibited by law. The fact that multiple licenses are held may be considered in the application process as a factor in determining whether the applicant is a suitable person to hold the license.
- 5. If the Commissioners do not approve the application, the commissioners shall endorse on the application the reasons for the denial. No further application may be received from the applicant until after the expiration of one year from the date of a denied application. However, if the application was denied based on the suitability of the location for the license, no further application may be received from the applicant until after the expiration if the applicant until after the expiration of the applicant until after the application.
- 6. If the Commissioners approve the application, the Commissioners shall endorse the approval on the application and shall issue a county license to the medical cannabis establishment.
- 7. Any license issued shall be effective and valid through December 31 of the year issued. However, any license approved in 2021 shall be effective and valid through December 31, 2022.
- 8. The County may receive no application for a license of any kind under this chapter until such time as the state of South Dakota promulgates their initial regulations under SDCL Section 34-20G-72. Any application submitted prior to such time shall be deemed rejected.
- F. Renewal Process:
  - 1. A license issued pursuant to this Ordinance may be renewed on an annual basis. An applicant for renewal is not automatically entitled to renewal. The issuance of a local license does not create a property right in that license.
  - 2. An Application for Renewal shall be on the same forms and with the same requirements as the initial application or any additions thereto.
  - 3. The applicant need not pay an application fee, but must pay the renewal fee as set forth herein. Such renewal fee shall be paid at the time the renewal application is filed with the Auditor.
  - 4. A completed Application for Renewal shall be presented to the Auditor no later than November 1.
  - 5. The Approval Process for a Renewal shall be the same as for an initial application.

### 6

6. However, the license of a medical cannabis establishment applying for renewal may be approved for renewal by the Commissioners without a hearing unless in the past year the licensee, one of its principal officers or board members, or an employee of the dispensary have been subjected to a criminal penalty for violation of the Medical Cannabis laws or this Ordinance, or the license has been suspended.

# Section 7. Suspension or Revocation

A. A local license issued hereunder may be suspended or revoked by the Commissioners for violation of this ordinance.

B. Notification of the intent of the Commissioners to consider suspension or revocation of a local license shall be made at the address given on the license. Such notification shall be at least thirty days in advance of the date set for public hearing on the suspension or revocation action.

C. Notice of public hearing shall be published in the official newspapers of the county at least one week prior to such hearing and in such form as deemed appropriate by the Commissioners.

D. At the public hearing, the Commissioners shall hear evidence or testimony from the licensee and any interested person. The Commissioners may revoke the license if they determine, following the public hearing, that a violation of this ordinance occurred.

- E. If the Commissioners are satisfied that the nature and the circumstances of the violation were such that a suspension of the license would be adequate, the Commissioners may, instead of revoking the license, suspend it for a period not exceeding sixty days.
- F. If the Commissioners suspend or revoke a local license, they shall notify the Secretary of the Department of Health of that fact.
- G. A suspension will be for thirty (30) days and begins ten (10) days after the postmark date on the notice or the date the notice is hand delivered unless the license holder exercises its rights to process and appeal, in which case the suspension takes effect upon the final determination of suspension.
- H. A revocation will be for one (1) year and begins ten (10) days after the postmark date on the notice or the date the notice is hand delivered unless the license holder appeals the revocation, in which case the revocation takes effect upon the final determination of revocation.
- I. The license holder who has had the license revoked may not be issued a cannabis establishment license for one year from the date the revocation became effective.

# Section 8. Operating Requirements and Restrictions

- A. The South Dakota legislature has expressly granted authority to the Commissioners to govern the time, place and manner of operation of medical cannabis establishments. SDCL 34-20G-58. The Commissioners may not prohibit a dispensary, either expressly or through the enactment or application of an ordinance that makes the operation of a dispensary impractical.
- B. No medical cannabis establishment may operate in Yankton County without possessing both a current license from Yankton County and a current registration certificate issued by the South Dakota Department of Health.
- C. A medical cannabis dispensary may not operate between the hours of eight (8) p.m. and eight (8) a.m.
- D. No medical cannabis establishment may share office space with a medical, psychiatric, counseling, chiropractic, or physical therapy practice.
- E. No medical cannabis establishment may be established, operated, or maintained within one thousand (1,000) feet of a public or private school.
- F. No medical cannabis dispensary may be established, operated, or maintained within four hundred (400) feet of a child welfare agency, a place of worship, an in-patient alcohol or drug treatment facility or a public playground.
- G. No medical cannabis dispensary may be established, operated, or maintained within four hundred (400) feet of another medical cannabis dispensary, a bar or a liquor store.
- H. No medical cannabis facility shall be located on-premises for which a license to sell alcoholic liquor has been issued.
- I. No person under twenty-one (21) years of age shall be allowed on the licensed premises of a medical cannabis establishment.
- J. At all times during the hours of operation of a medical cannabis establishment, there shall be present a manager or other employee of the licensee who shall be not less than twenty-one (21) years of age.
- K. No cannabis or related paraphernalia shall be displayed or kept in a business so as to be visible from outside the cannabis establishment.
- L. No licensee of a medical cannabis dispensary may dispense any medical marijuana to any person who is obviously under the influence of cannabis to such a degree as to cause impairment.
- M. Before cannabis may be dispensed by a medical cannabis dispensary, a medical cannabis establishment agent:

1. Shall make a diligent effort to verify that the registry identification is valid; and

2. Shall make a diligent effort to verify that the person presenting the documentation is the person identified on the document presented to the dispensary agent.

O. All retail sales of cannabis shall be in person, directly to the purchaser, and within the retail area of a cannabis dispensary. No drive-up windows or similar delivery process shall be allowed.

P. A medical cannabis establishment agent shall not dispense an amount of cannabis to a person that would cause the person to possess more than the allowable amount of cannabis.

Q. A medical cannabis establishment may not employ any person who has been convicted of a disqualifying felony offense.

R. No alcohol or cannabis may be consumed on the premises of a medical cannabis dispensary.

### Section 9: Signage and Advertising

A. All exterior signage associated with a medical cannabis establishment shall comply with the Yankton County Zoning Ordinance.

B. Any advertising shall be governed by the South Dakota Department of Health regulations and rules.

C. No cannabis establishment may distribute or allow the distribution of any cannabis or cannabis product without charge within a cannabis establishment or elsewhere for purposes of promotion, advertising or any other purpose.

### Section 10: Transfer of Licenses

- A. Certificate location transfer Application.
  - An application for the transfer of a registration certificate to a different physical location must include: 1. A completed change of location form;
  - 2. Documentation that establishment is operating in substantial compliance with its departmentapproved operating procedures or that circumstances beyond its control prevented such operation;
  - 3. Diagrams of all locations in which cannabis will be cultivated, harvested, dried, stored, manufactured, or destroyed;
  - 4. A detailed description of any changes to operating procedures, or a certification that no such changes exist;
  - 5. Certification of compliance with all applicable local zoning requirements; and
  - 6. Copies of all required registration, licenses, or permits reflecting the establishment's new address.

#### 8

- 7. A hearing shall be held pursuant to the procedures outlined in Section 6E of this ordinance prior to the transfer.
- B. No Cannabis Establishment license holder may transfer the license to any other person or entity either with or without consideration. Any medical cannabis establishment license issued in Yankton County is not transferable to a new owner, business, or other entity. An owner of a business which possesses a medical cannabis establishment license may designate a successor which will be given priority in their application for a new license.

### Section 11: Enforcement and Penalties

- A. Yankton County and law enforcement may inspect a medical cannabis facility during business hours to ensure compliance with this ordinance.
- B. Violation of the terms of this Ordinance may result in revocation or suspension of the local license as set forth in this Ordinance.
- C. Violation of the terms of this Ordinance may be enforced through a civil action in magistrate court or circuit court, at the discretion of the Commissioners.
- D. Civil penalties may not exceed \$500 for each violation.
- E. Each day the licensee is in violation of the Ordinance may be considered a separate violation.
- F. In the event of a violation, suspension, or revocation where the licensee may no longer legally possess cannabis, cannabis products, or other restricted items, the licensee shall be responsible to pay the costs incurred by the County for securing, storing, safeguarding, transferring, or disposing of any cannabis, cannabis products, or other restricted items.

### Section 12. Severability

Should any section, subsection, clause, phrase or part of this Ordinance be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional, invalid or otherwise affected by law, such determination shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of the Ordinance as a whole or any part thereof other than the part so determined.

### Section 13. Effective Date

This Ordinance shall be effective twenty (20) days following completed publication. Upon becoming effective, all prior Ordinances are revoked.

Passed and adopted this 5<sup>th</sup> day of October, 2021.

Yankton County Chair, Cheri Loest /S/ ATTEST: Karen Faerber, Deputy Yankton County Auditor /s/

**Action 21472C**: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Klimisch to recess the regular session and convene as Board of Adjustment. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0.

**Variance Public Hearing**: This was the time and place for a public hearing for a Variance to setbacks in a Moderate Density Residential District by Sandra Pierce. Applicant requested to construct a garage that is 5' from the west property line, a variance of 25', per Article 18, Section 1807. Said property is legally described as N1/3 of Lot G, Erskine's Plat, S22-T93N-R57W, County of Yankton, State of South Dakota.

There was no public comment.

**Action 21473Z:** A motion was made by Kettering and seconded by Klimisch to approve the variance application based on Findings of Fact from the September 14, 2021 Yankton County Planning Commission meeting, pursuant to Article 19, Section 1907 of the Yankton County Zoning Ordinance. Roll call vote was taken with Fox, Kettering, Healy, Klimisch voting aye, Loest voting nay. Motion carried, 4-1.

**Action 21474Z**: A motion was made by Healy and seconded by Fox to recess the Board of Adjustment and reconvene in regular session. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0.

Dan Fox of Fox and Youngberg, and John Billings, appeared before the board to discuss the Public Defender Contract. No action was taken and will be scheduled for next meeting on October 19.

Chair Loest left meeting at 7:00 p.m.

Vice Chairman Healy conducted the rest of the meeting.

There was no public comment.

Vice Chairman Healy closed public comment.

**Action 21475C**: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Klimisch to recess the regular session at 7:15 p.m. and convene in executive session to discuss Poor Relief Issues SDCL 1-25-2 & 28-13 and 28-13-1.3, litigation issue SDCL 1-25-2(3) and personnel issues SDCL 1-25-2(1) All present voted aye; motion carried, 4-0.

**Action 21476C**: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Klimisch to adjourn the executive session at 7:30 p.m. and reconvene in regular session. All present voted aye; motion carried, 4-0.

**Action 21477C:** A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Klimisch to pend the files of poor relief cases CW21-065 through CW 21-081 based on the following SDCLs: 28-13-1.3(1); 28-13-34.2; 28-13-33-2; 28-13-3; 28-13-33; 28-13-1.3(2); 28-13-27(2); SDCL 28-13-27(5); SDCL 28-13-33. All present voted aye; motion carried, 4-0.

**Action 21478C**: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Klimisch to adjourn. All present voted aye; motion carried, 4-0.

The next regular meeting will be Tuesday, October 19, 2021 at 6:00 p.m.

**Joseph Healy**, Vice-Chairman Yankton County Commission

ATTEST:

Karen Faerber, Deputy County Auditor